CITY OF BLAINE ANOKA COUNTY, MINNESOTA CITY COUNCIL MEETING Monday, August 3, 2020

7:30 P.M. Council Chambers 10801 Town Square Drive

CALL TO ORDER BY MAYOR PRO TEM JEPPSON

The meeting was called to order at 7:35 p.m. by Mayor Pro Tem Jeppson followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and the Roll Call. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic this hybrid meeting was held both virtually and in person.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Mayor Pro Tem Julie Jeppson, Councilmembers Andy Garvais, Wes Hovland, Richard Paul, Jess Robertson, and Dick Swanson.

ABSENT: Mayor Tom Ryan.

Quorum Present.

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Michelle Wolfe; Community Development Director Erik Thorvig; City Planner Lori Johnson; Public Works Director Jon Haukaas; Deputy Police Chief Dan Szykulski; Finance Director Joe Huss; Public Services Manager/Assistant City Manager Bob Therres; City Attorney Patrick Sweeney; City Engineer Dan Schluender; Communications Technician Roark Haver; Communications Manager Ben Hayle; and City Clerk Catherine Sorensen.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Workshop Meeting – July 13, 2020

Closed Session – Pending Litigation – July 20, 2020

Workshop Meeting – July 20, 2020

Regular Meeting – July 20, 2020

Moved by Councilmember Paul, seconded by Councilmember Hovland, that the Minutes of Workshop Meeting of July 13, 2020, Minutes of Closed Session – Pending Litigation Meeting of July 20, 2020, Minutes of Workshop Meeting of July 20, 2020, and the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 20, 2020 be approved.

A roll call vote was taken. Motion adopted. Councilmember Robertson abstained on the July 20, 2020 Closed Session – Pending Litigation meeting minutes due to her absence.

AWARDS - PRESENTATIONS - ORGANIZATIONAL BUSINESS

5.1 Resolution 20-105, Accept Donations to the Blaine Police Department.

Deputy Police Chief Szykulski stated the police department has received a number of donations from members of the community who are requesting they be given to Blaine Police Department officers/staff. The list of donations was reviewed with the Council and he requested the Council accept the donations.

Councilmember Robertson thanked the community for their outpouring of support and stated she truly valued the Blaine Police Department.

Moved by Councilmember Robertson, seconded by Councilmember Garvais, that Resolution 20-105, "Accept Donations to the Blaine Police Department," be approved.

A roll call vote was taken. Motion adopted unanimously.

COMMUNICATIONS

Mayor Pro Tem Jeppson encouraged all residents to get out and vote on Tuesday, August 11 for the Primary Election. City Clerk Sorensen explained the polls would be open for the Primary Election at 7:00 a.m. and close at 8:00 p.m then discussed options available for residents if they wish to vote early absentee.

OPEN FORUM FOR CITIZEN INPUT

Mayor Pro Tem Jeppson opened the Open Forum at 7:42 p.m.

There being no input, Mayor Pro Tem Jeppson closed the Open Forum at 7:43 p.m.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

The agenda was adopted as presented.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

Moved by Councilmember Robertson, seconded by Councilmember Garvais, that the following be approved:

- 9.1 Motion 20-83, Schedule of Bills Paid.
- 9.2 Resolution 20-106, Receive Petition and Order Public Hearing for Vacation of Drainage and Utility Easements on Lot 4, Block 1, April Ridge 4th Addition, Vacation No. V20-05.

A roll call vote was taken. Motion adopted unanimously.

7:30 P.M. - PUBLIC HEARINGS AND ITEMS SET FOR A CERTAIN TIME

None.

DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS

11.1 Second Reading – Ordinance No. 20-2452, Granting a Rezoning from FR (Farm Residential) to DF (Development Flex) for 13.71 Acres located at 860/880/910 113th Avenue NE. Lennar Corporation (Wicklow Cove) (Case File No. 20-0012/EES).

Moved by Councilmember Garvais, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Jeppson, that Ordinance No. 20-2452, "Granting a Rezoning from FR (Farm Residential) to DF (Development Flex) for 13.71 Acres located at 860/880/910 113th Avenue NE," be approved.

City Planner Johnson stated Lennar Corporation is proposing to develop 13.71 acres, consisting of three existing lots on the south side of 113th Avenue for the purpose of constructing 40 single family homes on this property. Lennar's request includes a rezoning, a preliminary plat and a conditional use permit. This proposal is very similar to Wicklow Woods which Lennar received approval for in 2018 and is located further east on the south side of 113th. Wicklow Woods is nearing completion with most lots completed and the remaining lots with homes under construction. Currently, the property has an existing zoning designation of FR (Farm Residential) and is guided in the Comprehensive Plan as LDR (Low Density Residential). The property is within the MUSA (Metropolitan Urban Service Area) which indicates it is intended to be served with city sewer and water. The project zoning is proposed to be DF (Development Flex) to cover the residential uses. With the DF zoning, housing products and neighborhood design issues will require and be regulated by a Conditional Use Permit (CUP).

Councilmember Paul asked if the developer was meeting the City's tree preservation requirements. Ms. Johnson reported the developer was meeting the tree preservation requirements.

Councilmember Robertson commented trees have been a concern for the surrounding neighbors and she understood Lennar has discussed the grading on the site. She questioned if the proposed tree replacement exceeded the City's requirements. Ms. Johnson discussed the City's tree replacement standards and noted developers were required to plant two trees per lot. She indicated Lennar would be planting three trees per residential lot within this development.

Councilmember Robertson stated she wished there was a better compromise for this development given the high level of feedback the City has received regarding the tree buffer. She explained she has heard these voices and suggested the Council have dialogue in the future regarding the City's tree preservation policy.

Councilmember Garvais explained he wanted the City to be cognizant of the water runoff from this development and wanted assurance that water from this development would not impact surrounding properties.

A roll call vote was taken. Motion adopted unanimously.

11.2 Resolution No. 20-107, Granting Preliminary Plat Approval to Subdivide Approximately 13.71 Acres into 40 Lots and One Outlot to be known as Wicklow Cove located at 860/880/910 113th Avenue NE. Lennar Corporation (Case File No. 20-0012/EES).

Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Jeppson, seconded by Councilmember Garvais, that Resolution No. 20-107, "Granting Preliminary Plat Approval to Subdivide Approximately 13.71 Acres into 40 Lots and One Outlot to be known as Wicklow Cove located at 860/880/910 113th Avenue NE," be approved.

Ms. Johnson requested the Council approve a Preliminary Plat for Wicklow Cove. It was noted this plat is proposed to connect to Alexander Woods, which was reviewed by the Planning Commission at its June

meeting. The developments will share a street and need to coordinate for utility access. The development provides a street connection to the west for future development. A ghost plat has been provided demonstrating how the two remaining larger parcels to the west could be developed and this plan helps the City and landowners understand where street connections can and should occur. Sidewalks are proposed for one side of all of the internal streets in the development but sidewalks are not shown for the south side of 113th Avenue but required to connect to existing sidewalk.

A roll call vote was taken. Motion adopted unanimously.

11.3 Resolution No. 20-108, Granting a Conditional Use Permit to Allow for the Construction of 40 Single Family Homes in a DF (Development Flex) Zoning District located at 860/880/910 113th Avenue NE. Lennar Corporation (Wicklow Cove) (Case File No. 20-0012/EES).

Moved by Councilmember Garvais, seconded by Councilmember Paul, that Resolution No. 20-108, "Granting a Conditional Use Permit to Allow for the Construction of 40 Single Family Homes in a DF (Development Flex) Zoning District located at 860/880/910 113th Avenue NE," be approved.

Ms. Johnson stated the conditional use permit is necessary to set up the standards of development in the DF (Development Flex) zoning district. It was noted Lennar is proposing single family homes comparable in size to Wicklow Woods, which is a smaller product targeted to first time homebuyers. The homes range from 1,325 to 2,600 square feet and are anticipated to have sale prices ranging from \$350,000-\$400,000.

Councilmember Paul encouraged staff to work with the developer to ensure there were no problems with the developer destroying property outside the City's right-of-way. Ms. Johnson explained staff does its best to maintain normal business practices and addresses problems when they arise.

A roll call vote was taken. Motion adopted unanimously.

11.4 First Reading – Ordinance No. 20-2453, Granting a Rezoning from R-1AA (Single Family) to DF (Development Flex) for Approximately 12.75 Acres at the North End of Xylite Street NE. Newmark Homes Inc. (Woods at Quail Creek 5th Addition) (Case File No. 20-0020/LSJ).

Ms. Johnson stated the applicant, MG Main Street Properties, is proposing to plat the 12.75 acres just north of the Woods at Quail Creek 4th Addition into 19 single family lots. The property is currently zoned R-1AA (Single Family) as this property was platted as an outlot of the Quail Creek 10th Addition to the north, which has the same zoning designation. It has always been envisioned that this plat would be brought forward and development would occur in this area. MG Main Street Properties also developed Woods at Quail Creek 4th Addition. Since this property has a different zoning designation from the other Woods at Quail Creek plats, it is necessary to process a rezoning application for this plat. The new zoning would be DF (Development Flex) so the zoning of all of the Woods at Quail Creek plats are consistent with one another. This is also the zoning district that is utilized the most for new developments.

Councilmember Robertson questioned if there was plans to mitigate some of the new traffic that will be generated. Ms. Johnson explained this connection has been planned by the City since the creation of the Woods at Quail Creek 1st Addition. She discussed how traffic moves through the Quail Creek developments and noted no stop signs were being considered.

Councilmember Robertson stated she understood this may have always been the City's plan but she would like the Council and staff to discuss these matters given the fact new traffic concerns may arise from when

the original plans were put in place. City Engineer Schluender explained staff has been monitoring traffic in this area and staff will continue to monitor the neighborhood after the connections are made.

Declared by Mayor Pro Tem Jeppson that Ordinance No. 20-2453, "Granting a Rezoning from R-1AA (Single Family) to DF (Development Flex) for Approximately 12.75 Acres at the North End of Xylite Street NE," be introduced and placed on file for second reading at the August 17, 2020 Council meeting.

11.5 Resolution No. 20-109, Granting a Conditional Use Permit Amendment for an Expansion of a Parking Lot Associated with a Truck Terminal in an I-2A (Heavy Industrial) Zoning District located at 3686 Flowerfield Road NE. Service Plus Transport (Case File No. 20-0023/LSJ).

Moved by Councilmember Swanson, seconded by Councilmember Garvais, that Resolution No. 20-109, "Granting a Conditional Use Permit Amendment for an Expansion of a Parking Lot Associated with a Truck Terminal in an I-2A (Heavy Industrial) Zoning District located at 3686 Flowerfield Road NE," be approved.

Ms. Johnson stated Service Plus Transport is currently located at 3686 Flowerfield Road. A conditional use permit was granted for this property in 1988 for Blaine Truck Company to operate a truck terminal at this location. This use has been continued throughout the years, and in 2000, Magnum Trucking, who owned the site at the time, applied for a conditional use permit to expand their operation with a building addition and additional parking areas for semi-trucks. This expansion received a conditional use permit but the building addition was never constructed. Today, Service Plus Transport is the current owner and the business would like to expand its parking area on the site that they currently own to the east of their existing site. This requires a conditional use permit amendment. Service Plus Transport offers direct transport service. At this time, they are not looking to expand their number of trucks on site, they are simply looking to provide better circulation for the trucks that they do have. Technically, this site would be considered legal nonconforming because the Zoning Ordinance requires that any truck terminal operation must also have a 50,000 square foot building on site. Given that this work is simply considered maintenance, this site does not need to be brought into conformance with the ordinance with the parking lot expansion.

Ms. Johnson reported right now, the Service Plus Transport facility encompasses two lots, but will encompass three lots after the parking lot expansion. The three lots will need to be combined at Anoka County prior to any work being performed on site. The site on which the parking lot will be expanded had many existing trees that were removed. Staff was disappointed to learn that these trees were removed in anticipation of this project prior to any approval from the city. That area was a little over 1 acre in size and the city's tree preservation requirements indicated that for every acre of trees removed, 8 trees must be replaced. The landscape plan for the site indicates that the overall existing site has a lot of large mature trees and normal landscape requirements are being met on the existing site. It is recommended that the 8 new trees be conifer trees and all 8 of these trees must be placed along Flowerfield Road adjacent to the parking area. In addition, the existing berm along Flowerfield Road must be expanded to screen the new parking lot area on the east side of the site. The grading plan should be amended as such. The site exceeds the number of parking spaces required for an 8,871 square foot building that is on site. There are 25 new semi stalls and 10 regular stalls provided on the new site plan. The parking around on the west side of the site is also being reconfigured to accommodate 11 stalls for trailer parking.

Mayor Pro Tem Jeppson asked if staff has received any comments from the public regarding this request. Ms. Johnson reported staff has not received any letters or emails.

A roll call vote was taken. Motion adopted unanimously.

11.6 Resolution No. 20-110, Granting Final Plat Approval to Subdivide Approximately 30 Acres into 46 Lots and 5 Outlots to be known as Alexander Woods located at 113th Avenue NE and Polk Street NE. (Case File No. 20-0006/EES).

Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Jeppson, seconded by Councilmember Garvais, that Resolution No. 20-110, "Granting Final Plat Approval to Subdivide Approximately 30 Acres into 46 Lots and 5 Outlots to be known as Alexander Woods located at 113th Avenue NE and Polk Street NE," be approved.

Ms. Johnson stated the preliminary plat subdivided 30 acres into 45 villas and 39 single family homes and the development will be known as Alexander Woods. Forty-six lots are proposed to be platted at this time, including 22 villa lots, 21 single family, and the three existing homes that will remain. The villa lots have a minimum width of 53 feet and the single family lots have a minimum width of 55 feet. Five outlots are shown including two for stormwater management and three for future development. Wicklow Woods, a recent development by Lennar, stubbed several streets in the direction of this development. Two properties, under common ownership, are located between Wicklow Woods and Alexander Woods, and a ghost plat has been provided showing how those properties could develop and connect to the streets on either side. The property to the west is currently proposed for development by Lennar. Tyler Street, on the north side of 113th Avenue, is located at the property line between Alexander Woods and the future Lennar subdivision (Wicklow Cove). A phasing plan and agreement between the two developers is needed to address the shared street. Two streets are proposed to connect to the developments to the south and create connections to 109th Avenue through the Creekside Village and Coopers Meadow.

A roll call vote was taken. Motion adopted unanimously.

ADMINISTRATION

12.1 Resolution No. 20-111, Establish Small Business Grant Program Related to COVID-19.

Moved by Councilmember Garvais, seconded by Councilmember Robertson, that Resolution No. 20-111, "Establish Small Business Grant Program Related to COVID-19," be approved.

Community Development Director Thorvig stated cities across Minnesota are certifying their eligibility to receive federal Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) distributions. The fund, created by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act, is designed to provide economic help to entities struggling because of the COVID-19 pandemic. The City of Blaine is eligible for approximately \$5 million in funding. City staff has been identifying various uses for the funds as it relates to the requirements set forth by the federal government. The city has also retained a consultant to assist in administering and providing guidance in the use of funds. Various uses of funds will be discussed by the city council over the next several weeks.

Mr. Thorvig reported one of the eligible uses of funds is providing grants to small businesses that have been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Given the urgency to assist businesses, staff is proposing to establish criteria for a small business grant program as a first step in the overall spending of funds. Anoka County and most cities within the county are in the process of establishing grant programs. Anoka County is allocating \$5 million in business grants and \$1 million in non-profit grants. Staff is recommending the City dedicate \$500,000 to the small business grant program with \$250,000 made available immediately, and reserving \$250,000 for a second round of grants later in the fall. Staff has reviewed the State of Minnesota, Anoka County and programs from other cities and have attempted to mirror criteria in the proposed program for Blaine. Staff reviewed the proposed eligibility and general criteria and recommended approval of the Small

Business Grant Program. It was noted this program would replace the previously approved City program in order to preserve EDA funds.

Councilmember Paul questioned if the City would be reimbursed for COVID related expenses. Mr. Thorvig reported the City would use CARES Act dollars, separate from this program, to reimburse itself for COVID related expenses.

A roll call vote was taken. Motion adopted unanimously.

OTHER BUSINESS

None.

ADJOURNMENT

Catherine Sorensen, CMC, City Clerk

Submitted by Minute Maker Secretarial

Moved by Councilmember Robertson, seconded by Councilmember Garvais, to adjourn the meeting at 8:20 p.m.

A roll call vote was taken. Motion adopted unanimously.	
	Julie Jeppson, Mayor Pro Tem
ATTEST:	
ATTEST.	